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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – DECEMBER 22, 2011

(Time Noted – 7:03 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all of the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. Then the Board will consider the applications in the order heard. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications this evening; but may take up to 62 days to reach a determination. I would ask if you have a cell phone to please turn it off so that we won’t be interrupted. And also when speaking, speak directly into the microphone because it is being recorded. And all Members of the Board have visited all of the sites in question. Roll call please. 

PRESENT ARE: 



GRACE CARDONE



JOHN MC KELVEY



BRENDA DRAKE



RONALD HUGHES



MICHAEL MAHER



JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT: 



RUTH EATON

ALSO PRESENT:



DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.



BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY



GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE







(Time Noted – 7:04 PM)


ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 22, 2011             (Time Noted – 7:04PM) 



FRANK MANISCALCHI


32 SUSAN DRIVE, NBGH







(46-5-20) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for one side yard setback, the combined side yards setbacks and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback to build front and interior alterations and rear bump out addition with a new deck on the residence.    

Chairperson Cardone: Our first and only applicant Frank Maniscalchi.                

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice for this application being heard this evening were published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, December 13th and in the Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday, Wednesday December 14th. This applicant sent out seventeen registered letters, fifteen were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. would you please step to the microphone, identify yourself for the record.

Mr. Maniscalchi: I’m Frank Maniscalchi.

Mr. Foley: I’m Brian Foley I’m doing the general contracting.

Chairperson Cardone: And state your request.

Mr. Maniscalchi: My request is for an area variance for one side yard setback, the combined side yard setbacks and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback to build front and interior alterations and rear bump out addition with a new deck on the residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: What are you referring to when you say bump outs besides the deck?

Mr. Maniscalchi: The rear of…the rear of the home had a…the home is an older home and the rear had a bump out already but it wasn't in a…in a…

Mr. Hughes: Is it in this area here that you're talking about?

Mr. Maniscalchi: Yeah, it wasn’t symmetrical…the bump out was only half way through the entire rear of the home so the bump out is just to make it symmetrical all the way across so we eliminated the jog. That part of the home is a kitchen so if we left it like that you would kind of be like this and like this (made a zigzag motion) so we just wanted one straight line going straight across the rear of the home.  

Mr. Hughes: So where all the glass doors are on the deck go right into the kitchen and the kitchen only? 

Mr. Maniscalchi: That’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: And where this double door here what’s behind there?

Mr. Maniscalchi: That’s a…it’s like a a small a…room, I guess a den with a fireplace.

Mr. Hughes: And is that connected with an archway into your kitchen?

Mr. Maniscalchi: A no it’s a step down.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I can see there’s a difference in elevation there. Is that the only bump out that you referred to?

Mr. Maniscalchi: A...no the front we were bumping out the front of the home so we can create…so we can create an entranceway with a small foyer.

Mr. Hughes: And that’s over the front door in the same location where it is?

Mr. Maniscalchi: That’s correct absolutely.

Mr. Hughes: With the peaked roof over the top and the balcony?

Mr. Maniscalchi: That’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I wanted to pin that down when you said bump outs I wasn’t sure if it was more than one.

Mr. Maniscalchi: Sorry about that. Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: A…are you the guy that drew the plans or is there somebody else in this? Day Engineering, you’re not…you’re the contractor you say sir? Foley?

Mr. Foley: Yes sir, I’m just helping Frank with some of the general contracting. We did have a professional do the drawings.

Mr. Hughes: It looks like it just keeps pushing over and pushing over and part of what you have to satisfy in order for us to relieve you from the a…restrictions of the law, is there another way you can do this without encroaching on the neighbor. Is there a possibility to move that deck to the center of the house and not be so far close to the property line? What I’m looking and I’m guessing this is your neighbor here it’s a view shed encroachment and you know its sticking out over the thing and it seems like you have quite a bit of property there. And I’ve been out there I know the area well enough. Even between where the steep cliff is if you move that deck over then you wouldn’t be impeding on the property line and you might not even need a variance for that part of it.

Mr. Foley: Just a…because of the change in the elevation and the house it would just be…it would nice to sort of come out of the kitchen out that same elevation instead of stepping down onto the deck.  

Mr. Hughes: Well no, I’m not suggesting stepping down. What about if you reduced the width of that deck so it’s not over to the property line? Maybe I can…I should refer to Counsel. Counsel, can you recite for the applicant and the public here the requirements and what we’re supposed to look at in angling to reduce the number of variances that are necessary? 

Mr. Donovan: Well I don’t know that it’s necessary to go through the whole balancing test. I think the idea is we need to…this Board needs to be satisfied that we’re granting the minimal variance required to allow the applicant to obtain the relief they are seeking. I just have a question if anyone knows the answer. Was this…I see this lot appears to have been created in 1956 as part of a sub-division, does anybody know what the setback was at that time? I see its ten feet to the property now/formerly Hadid & Hemshu.

Mr. Hughes: I don’t know that they had a Zoning Code enforcement until ’57. So I’m guessing that these lots…

Mr. Donovan: They didn’t have the…

Chairperson Cardone: Jerry, could you answer that question? 

Mr. Hughes: …pre-existing, non-conforming.

Mr. Canfield: Testing, one two. I wasn’t born in 1956 but…

Mr. Donovan: Neither was I.

Mr. Hughes: I was there when they did it.

Mr. Canfield: Actually my nose is growing. A…Ron is right the zoning wasn’t established and enforced till I believe, it’s ’57. I know it was the late 50’s I don’t know for sure so I have no way to see what the requirements were back then. I don’t think there were any. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: So not that it’s mentioned in any of the papers but I believe that this is pre-existing, non-conforming in the lot but now we fast forward to what regulations about what we have to deal with now.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. As soon as you add on to it you are going with the new regulations.

Mr. Hughes: Right. So now you’ve got a new project. There wasn’t a deck that you’re replacing it’s a whole new ball game. You have to be adherent to today’s rules. I just wanted to get that on a level playing field now. Do you have any objections about…

Mr. Foley: I just wanted to add that the…

Mr. Hughes: …moving it around there?

Mr. Foley: …deck isn’t sticking out any farther to the left side of the house. It’s just its staying perpendicular with the left wall so, I mean…

Mr. Maher: Well you are encroaching about two and a half feet further on there on the lot line.

Mr. Foley: It’s because it’s askew, the house is askew, right?

Mr. Maher: Well you are, you are encroaching further on the lot line than existing.

Mr. Foley: Right. You know, we’re just trying to enjoy the view of the River and…and a without encroaching…

Mr. Hughes: Do you live there?

Mr. Maniscalchi: No.

Mr. Hughes: Is this a spec deal? Are you going to flip this house over or a…?

Mr. Maniscalchi: No the home has been vacant since a…April 6th of 2010 cause of we were working on getting this going. I don’t live there. I live down…I’ve lived in Balmville my whole life. I live on a…Grand Ave right now on the private road of Water Way which is right around the corner. I can walk there which I’ve lived there my whole life and a…I purchased this home and I don’t presently live in it cause we…I wanted to renovate it and no I’m not flipping it. I will be residing there for…

Mr. Hughes: So this will be your primary?

Mr. Maniscalchi: That would be my primary residence for as far as I can see, raising a family there and a…establishing my residence there for a long period of time. I’m a…I own a business, I own multiple businesses in the Town and plan on being here for a long time. 

Chairperson Cardone: Now you had a screen porch on the opposite side of the house and you’re removing that? Is there any reason that you didn’t bring the deck out where that screen porch was?

Mr. Maniscalchi:  The…the screened porch a…comes off of that room that Mr. Hughes asked me about with the small fireplace. That’s the only…that’s the only way you can get into that screened porch it comes off of that room. The deck is for the kitchen to just be able to walk out onto your deck and enjoy the view, you know, directly through the kitchen on the back side of the home. It’s not a…

Chairperson Cardone: And the patio is remaining? The patio is remaining?

Mr. Maniscalchi: No, the patio as far as the screened in?

Chairperson Cardone: This…

Mr. Maniscalchi: No that will be removed it will just go right back all the way to the home.

Chairperson Cardone: No I’m just…I’m just wondering why if this patio here, the deck couldn’t come off of this area right here?

Mr. Foley: It’s just cause of the elevation change inside the home. The…the living area where the fireplace is is about two feet lower than the end of the home. It would just be very awkward to come out that way.  

Mr. Manley: But wouldn’t it give a little more privacy coming off of the…what the Ms. Cardone was saying is that if you put it where the screen porch is and also behind I guess where the living room would be you could make that all deck back there and it would be an entirely…you would still have the view but it would be entirely private then back there and you wouldn’t be encroaching on the other side where the…where you’re going to be within eight feet of the property line. 

Mr. Hughes: And thereby eliminating one variance. The front part of the property I don’t see a problem with that unless there is something I’m overlooking but the back part of it being that you’re leaning to the one side of the neighbor that’s close to begin with if there’s another way that you can achieve building your deck we’re supposed to look for that. 

Mr. Maniscalchi: (Inaudible.)

Mr. Hughes: O.K. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Can you speak into the microphone, please? Thank you.

Mr. Maniscalchi: I understand. 

Ms. Drake: How many bedrooms do you have in the house now?

Mr. Maniscalchi: There was four and we eliminated to three. We actually took…we removed one bedroom.

Mr. Hughes: Are you on Town water and sewer there? 

Chairperson Cardone: Town water.

Mr. Maniscalchi: Town water. 

Mr. Hughes: But no sewer. You have a septic system?

Mr. Maniscalchi: Yes sir.    

Mr. McKelvey: It shows a septic tank here on the drawings.

Mr. Foley: Mr. Hughes you actually bring up a good point that the deck would be over the leech field if we decided to move it to the right…more towards the other side of the home. 

Mr. McKelvey: See where it is around here?

Mr. Foley: Yep.

Mr. Hughes: I always ask because sometimes it shows it on the print and then since the print somebody has added a real system. Is there sewer in that part of the world? 

(Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: It’s just water.

Ms. Gennarelli: Can you…excuse me; can you talk into the microphone and say either yes or no? Shaking your head is not going to be picked up on the record. 

Mr. Maniscalchi: O.K. sorry.

Ms. Gennarelli: That was yes, thank you.

Mr. Maniscalchi: I didn’t know that the question was directed towards me.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. either one, thank you.

Mr. Hughes: You had a question or…?

Audience Member: (Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: Are you the neighbor on the other side?

Chairperson Cardone: A…

Mr. Hadid:  Water, no sewer. I’m the neighbor on the north side. Hadid, neighbor Susan Drive.

Mr. McKelvey: Would you identify yourself?

Chairperson Cardone: He just did.

Mr. McKelvey: Oh, did he? Sorry.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, we saw your name on the deeds…a…the maps.

Mr. Hadid: Thank you. 

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If so, please identify yourself.

Mr. LoBiando: Good evening, I’m Anthony LoBiando on behalf of my father Ross LoBiando. He lives, (neighbor) Susan Drive which is across the street and just a little bit north and our concern which I’m unable to ascertain based the discussion as to whether or not there is going to be any building going on that’s going to impede the view from there because his view is directly over and to each side of the house that exists now. So I’m hearing about a porch that might be extending over but I can’t tell from the discussions whether that…?

Mr. Donovan: Do you want to take a look at the map Anthony?  

Mr. LoBiando (Anthony): Sure.

Mr. Hughes: Anthony you might want to look at his elevations as well.

Mr. Maniscalchi: May I make a remark to Mr. LoBiando?

Chairperson Cardone: Do you mean for the record?

Mr. Maniscalchi: Yes, just quick. Anthony, I just wanted to say that actually we were going to do something that’s going to improve…your father lives across the street?

Mr. LoBiando (Anthony): Yes.

Mr. Maniscalchi: We were going to do something to improve a…your father’s view. A…do you know the property, 32? 

Mr. LoBiando (Anthony): Yes.

Mr. Maniscalchi:  When you’re entering the driveway and where the driveway ends there’s a tree, a big tree, we’re…we’re taking that tree down which would improve Mr. LoBiando’s view of the river from their point.

Mr. Hughes: Is that on the same side where the deck is or the other side?

Mr. Maniscalchi: It’s on the other side.

Mr. Hughes: Thought so because I was there and I saw it.

Mr. Maniscalchi: So the driveway…if you enter if you come right into my driveway that’s where you stop, where the blacktop stops there’s a pretty big tree and if its right across from where Mr. LoBiando lives we’re removing that tree which would definitely, definitely improve his view of the river.

Chairperson Cardone: What I think the concern was that the addition in the front that it not go any higher than the house currently is that was his question I think.

Mr. Maniscalchi:  No, no the answer to that question is no we would not…his view of the river would not be impinged on anything that we are doing in the front of the home.

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, you all have to get up and identify yourself and speak into the microphone.

Mr. LoBiando (Ross): Ross LoBiando. How about the side? Anything…?

Chairperson Cardone: Talk right into microphone.

Ms. Gennarelli: Please use the microphone.

Mr. Maniscalchi: No sir.

Ms. Gennarelli: You have to get close.

Mr. LoBiando (Ross): There is nothing on the side going up?

Mr. Maniscalchi: No sir.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, Mrs. Hadid.

Ms. Hadid: Hi, I’m Cherifa Hadid, (neighbor) Susan Drive. When I came, I came here and I looked at the…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me; can you just tilt that down towards you? You can pull it down. Thank you.  

Ms. Hadid:  O.K. sorry. Thank you. When I came to the Town Hall I looked at the drawing, they told me they are going to build four feet addition to the first floor which is going to stick out toward our property. That’s what they told me, besides the deck. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Ms. Hadid: I don’t know if that’s true. So that’s what’s coming to the side because how the property is going at an angle toward our house. This is how it was told to me.

Chairperson Cardone: It would be closer because of the angle.    

Ms. Hadid: It would be closer and then the four feet also for the first floor coming so it’s also coming and blocking some of view side way which was that room is the best room, I think, that what we have.   

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Ms. Hadid:  (Inaudible) I don’t if they are not building at all. I don’t know…adding.

Mr. Hughes: Grace.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes? Go ahead.

Mr. Hadid: Hadid again, the neighbor Susan Drive. If you can just clarify for our concern so the extension on the house, you know, I didn’t see the map. My wife did, I wished I did have a map ahead of time. So the extension, the house itself toward our property, toward the north of Susan Drive, the house itself or the house and the deck or the deck alone?

Mr. Hughes: The deck alone is going to be coming towards your house because of the angle.

Chairperson Cardone: Well also the addition because of the angle that would be a little bit closer. Have you seen this map yet?

Mr. Hadid: I have not.

Mr. Hughes: You might want to look at the elevation map too.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Mr. Hadid: Oh, O.K. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Take a look at this.

Mr. Hughes: Do you want a few minutes to look at that stuff?

Chairperson Cardone: And then here are the a… (Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: Grace. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. go ahead.

Mr. Foley: Brian Foley again. I just want to…I have a picture of the next door neighbor’s house with a deck on it also if you guys would like to take a look at it.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah we’ve been to the site.

Chairperson Cardone: Right, we’ve been out there.

Mr. Foley: I just want to also point out the height elevation in his deck that would be compared to Mr. Maniscalchi’s.  

Mr. Hughes: So Mr. Foley with the addition and the deck how far is it going to be from where the back wall of the house is now?

Mr. Foley: A…off the top of my head sir, I believe it is twenty-eight feet but I would look at the blueprint again to clarify that.

Mr. Hughes: And how high is the railing from the deck floor?

Mr. Foley: Whatever Code is sir, I believe its four feet.

Mr. Hughes: Jerry is it four feet?

Mr. Foley: I just also that the railing is going to be glass.

Mr. Maher: Is there possibly a way to…to follow the contour of the property line, angle the deck so that you don’t get any closer to the existing property line? So basically right now the corner of the house or the ten-foot four with the four foot addition is there a way to continue that line along the…parallel to the property line? It would angle the deck slightly, you’d lose about two and a half feet at the corner but the difference is now you’re not impeding any closer to the property line than you currently are and you’re carrying a straight line across.

Mr. Foley: I understand. I just a…that would be Mr. Maniscalchi’s decision.

Mr. Maher: Well again it’s an option obviously to think about.   

Mr. Foley: I just think aesthetically that would look a little strange just in my opinion.

Ms. Drake: One thing I was thinking of being you’ve got the French doors there if you were to slide the deck down, to start right on…right at the edge of the French door, then you could still go out straight but you’ve moved it down a little bit so when you got out to the end you may not be, you may only be the ten foot of the existing and not the eight foot.  

Mr. Maher: What is…what is…Jerry what’s the rule regarding the covering the septic tank with a deck? 

Mr. Canfield: (Inaudible)

Mr. Maher: As far as coving the septic tank?

Mr. Hughes: I…I think that it wouldn’t be in conflict there I think it’s over far enough. Sir do you know exactly where that leech field is? 

Mr. Canfield: As long as the clean out is exposed?

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, can we have one person talk at a time because it’s not picking up. Jerry could you just repeat that again?

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, Ron’s question or Mike’s question was what’s the requirement as far as covering the septic? And my response was as long as the clean out is exposed so you can get in there to pump the tank. The deck as it shows does somewhat cover the existing septic tank.

Mr. Foley: A…Brian Foley again, just want to mention that that deck it will be a…is at the height of the first floor and that basement is fully exposed coming out so that’s a good eight feet of height above the top of the tank so that would be exposed, absolutely no problem to getting in there to pump it out.   

Mr. Maher: So that wouldn’t preclude you from moving the deck south to the corner of the kitchen bump out then? 

Mr. Foley: South to the corner…can you just…can you explain that to me on that plan?

Mr. Hughes: Where your first glass door is.

Mr. Maher: In other words if you were to move the deck to this corner here and that would bring it back I’m assuming four or five feet there that would lessen…

Mr. Hughes: Just a shift.

Mr. Maher: …lessen your degree you need for a variance on the side yard also take care of the residents concerns and if you have that much clearance over the septic tank it doesn’t defeat putting that out.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have your elevations? 

(Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: Here, you got it here, over here. Suppose, suppose you move the deck to where it was even with the end of this door? And just shift this over here and have your steps come down here so the deck ends here? 

(Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I think that’s your answer right there and then you got it covered.  

Mr. Donovan: Ron, can I make this suggestion if you might have him step back and do that into the microphone so it gets picked up?

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: We did some show and tell and we’ll do that now.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. McKelvey: You have to go to the microphone.

Mr. Hughes: Go up there and tell them about that slide.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you Dave.

Mr. Foley: They want to ask you if instead of having the deck end at the end of the house if you could bring it in to where the beginning of the door is and then it would just slide further this way instead of there (Inaudible) kind of move it in a couple of feet.

(Inaudible) 

Mr. Maher: The idea behind doing that is then you still have the same size deck but you’re not encroaching any further than you currently are on your side yard.

Mr. Hughes: And you still have your same elevation and your…the whole deal.

Mr. Maniscalchi: Yes sir.

Mr. Hughes: That’s all right with you?

Mr. Maniscalchi: Yes sir.

Mr. Donovan: Let’s be clear. Can you put that on the record because…?

Mr. Hughes: If Mr. Foley would describe with a short narrative what we’ve reviewed here.

Mr. Foley: A…Mr. Hughes if I could just have a minute and look at the blueprint? Just want to know how far in that is where the door starts. 

Mr. Hughes: Sure.

Ms. Drake: Before you do that I have one quick question. Where it shows 10.4-foot proposed side yard, I guess that’s at the beginning of the deck, what is that currently right now on the house…existing house?

Mr. Maher: Well that’s showing the addition. I’m going to assume it’s around eleven feet or so on the current. Yeah that’s 10.4 that’s to the new 4-foot bump out so…  

Chairperson Cardone: Is it a 4-foot or a 5-foot?  

Mr. Maher: It’s a 4-foot bump out along the entire rear of the house there. So there’s basically there’s…

Ms. Drake: O.K. so you’re going from like eleven to 10.4?

(Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: Did you hear what…? You can step up and a…if you step up and Mr. Hughes will show you what their suggestion as far as changing it.

(Inaudible) 

Multiple people simultaneously talking (Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Maniscalchi their deck is at a higher elevation than what your deck is going to be?

(Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Multiple conversations and simultaneous talking (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Grace. 

Chairperson Cardone: We have to get just one conversation going here now because we have a couple of conversations going on. I know that everyone has to see what we’re talking about but at this point I’m hoping that everybody has a clear idea of what we’re talking about so that we can just have one conversation going. 

Mr. Foley: Mr. Hughes a…Mr. Maher the a…I don’t have a tape ruler with me I know it’s a quarter inch per foot on the plans I just wanted to know the measurement that we would have to come in.

Mr. Maher: Well I…I mean I think you’d want to make it so that you want to move it down south on the rear of the house so you don’t impede any closer than the 10’4” to the side yard as you currently have depicted in the addition on the back of the house.  

Mr. Foley: If I might approach you and just show you on the plans its probably…it looks like its going to be about eighteen inches.

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: How about if you use the other mic? Thanks.

Mr. Foley: Because I’d like to keep the railing outside of the window, I mean the door, you know, frame...molding.

Mr. Hughes: It…well… (Inaudible)

Mr. Foley: Can I bring this up to you?

Mr. Hughes: …before we get down to the last half an inch…

Mr. Foley: Right. 

Mr. Hughes: …if you would describe to everybody in the room your narrative of the adjustment…?

Mr. Foley: Sure.

Mr. Hughes: And we’ll see if that’s acceptable and then we’ll take the scale out.

Ms. Gennarelli: And you can put those plans on the board if you’d like, if it will make it easier.

Mr. Hughes: You can use this easel here…

Ms. Gennarelli: And there’s a microphone over there.

Mr. Hughes: And if you want you can also post the survey we have.

Ms. Gennarelli: Jerry, could you give him that other microphone? 

Chairperson Cardone: Jerry.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. that green light, see if there’s a green light on, if not press the button.

Mr. Foley: Would the neighbors like to come up and I can explain to you my interpretation of Mr. Maher’s solution?

Mr. Hughes: This one might be more simple if you want to use that to assist you.

Mr. Foley: O.K. These plans represent the back of the house. This is the existing four foot bump out it ends roughly here. We just want to carry that all the way across, make the kitchen bigger and at the same add the deck. A…the Board’s solution to our problem, which our problem is the deck comes all the way to the left side of the house but the house itself sits askew on the property so it would impede on the property line. They’re suggesting that we bring the end of the deck in up against the first glass door which again without a tape ruler looks to be roughly about eighteen inches. Mr. Maniscalchi is fine with that and would accept that solution.  

Ms. Gennarelli: And is that A-4 in the corner Brian?

Mr. Foley: I’m sorry?

Ms. Gennarelli: Is that identified as A-4 on the bottom of the right side?

Mr. Foley: Page number A-4, yes.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you. So does…

Mr. Foley: They’re saying…

Mr. Hughes: …everybody understand they’re going to slide over so that the end of the deck is just outside the furthest north glass door and that will bring that deck where its not in the view shed between the buildings from your house and they’ve seen the difference in the elevation of their deck and the new deck and its not a problem to them especially with that whole thing being glass you can see right through it. 

Mr. McKelvey: And your deck…your deck is going to be…is higher than this deck.

Mr. Hughes: It’s about six feet six higher just by eye, I don’t know exactly but…

Mr. Maniscalchi: (Inaudible)

Mr. Donovan: Now…

Ms. Gennarelli: You can use the…

Mr. Donovan: …just so I’m clear because…

Ms. Gennarelli: …microphone… 

Mr. Donovan: …ultimately at the end of the day I need to write this…

Ms. Gennarelli: …it just won’t go into the record.

Mr. Donovan: So right now what we’re showing is as proposed the closest portion of the deck to the northerly property line is eight feet and we’re going to…we’re going to reduce that to make that eight feet, nine feet six inches? Is that what you’re saying?

Mr. Maher: No, we discussed was so that it doesn’t encroach any further than the house currently does as shown as 10‘4” from the property line.  

Mr. Donovan: So we need to…O.K.

Mr. Hughes: On this plate…

Chairperson Cardone: Well its not as the house currently is…it’s the house with the addition.

Mr. Maher: Right currently shown on the plan.

Mr. Hughes: On this plate here…

Mr. Donovan: So you need to stay within 10’4” is that what we’re…is that what we’re saying?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Foley: Well, Brian Foley again, a…Mr. Maher I’m not sure on that measurement…

Mr. Maher: No, I understand that but…but I’m going to assume that if you need two and a half foot, you need two and a half foot to move the deck. That’s pretty much a common sense…so I’m not going to put a…

Mr. Foley: Right.

Mr. Maher: …not going to put a number on it just so that you don’t encroach any further than 10’4 to their property line. If its twenty-six inches you move it, twenty-eight, thirty-six whatever the case may be, you need to stay within that 10’4 side yard setback. 

Mr. Hughes: So the methodology is to bring that deck over to the north side of this row of sliding glass windows and that will bring it back far enough from the house where it will bring that corner of the deck further away from the property line and eliminate that variance.

Ms. Drake: But I think they’re saying…the contractor is saying is…

Chairperson Cardone: It won’t eliminate it. It just will lessen it. 

Mr. Foley: (Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: What do you need to have on that side? 

Mr. Donovan: Well it’s pre-existing, non-conforming we’re…we’re…yeah. So the…

Mr. Hughes: Because we’re building under new rules it says eighty on both?

Mr. Donovan: Well the addition, that four or five foot addition what we’re calling the bump out is closer to the northerly property line than the existing house. So you need a variance for that plus their increasing the degree of the non-conformity so you need a variance for that. So you actually need the same variances as that are being requested it’s just the degree of the variance is less.

Mr. Hughes: Is reduced. 

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Everybody understand? Any further questions? Between you guys, everybody…all the neighbors understand?

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me; you have to use the microphone sir. Brian…

Chairperson Cardone: Right now the variance is 73.5% Ron which is…

Mr. Hughes: Which is substantial.

Chairperson Cardone: …very substantial. Yes.

Mr. Hughes: It is very substantial. 

Chairperson Cardone: Because it should be thirty…it should be thirty and it’s a twenty-two foot variance, the way its written here.

Mr. Hughes: That’s hefty.

Mr. Maher: But the current, the existing side yard setback now is roughly eleven feet which is at sixty five percent so you’re increasing the degree of non-conformity by an additional three feet in essence for (inaudible) you’re increasing by a foot and a half by the currents. Sure, because of the current, there was no zoning when it was built obviously. 

Ms. Drake: So Mike when you were looking at the plans were you able to determine that they can move it over and stay within the 10‘4?

Mr. Maher: It appears to be about twenty-eight inches or so ironically that’s basically what he needs between the corner and the edge of the a…the edge of where the window starts…the glass door starts, I’m sorry. I don’t think moving it twenty-eight inches to the south should be an issue to get to their (inaudible) again I would caution you in the end to insure that the surveyor stakes it out so that when you do build it you are within or not within the 10’4 and you’re beyond that so that you don’t come back before the Board and say we made a mistake here we’re actually at 10-foot.  So I caution you to use a surveyor to stake it out so you know exactly where your property line is and stretch a line. 

Mr. Foley: Mr. Maher, if it came to that point at the…at the far corner of the…you know where we’re talking about there a…if we had to could we like forty-five it to kind of…? 

Mr. Maher: In the end so long as you don’t exceed…

Mr. Foley: Right.

Mr. Maher: …the…the variance that you’re given.

Mr. Foley: O.K.

Mr. Maher: And as long as the Building Department approves the plans you have submitted.

Mr. Foley: Right.

Mr. Maher: It’s not an issue.

Mr. Foley: O.K. I just, you know, the forty-five isn’t on the plans right now.

Mr. Maher: No I understand that, there are many ways to take of that.

Mr. Foley: Right.

Mr. Maher: Chopping a foot off…

Mr. Foley: O.K.

Mr. Maher: … forty-fiving it…surrounding it. 

Mr. Foley: Right.

Mr. Maher: At the end of the day as long as you don’t encroach past what…

Mr. Foley: Right. I don’t want to end up…

Mr. Maher: …we give…it will be fine.

Mr. Foley: …here again and I’m sure Mr. Maniscalchi doesn’t either so I’m just trying to ask some questions before we move forward.

Mr. Maher: Double check it and make sure you’re within the requirements there.

Mr. McKelvey: And you’re satisfied you’re going to have your view?

(Audience Member)  Yes.

Multiple people simultaneously talking (Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: And Dr. Hadid do you have anything else to add?

Mr. Hadid: Yes, thank you. Yeah, Hadid, just have a…just want a…clarification from Mr. Hughes if you can show me here this…if this is my house and this is my neighbor existing house now I need you to just clarify to me now what the most practical plan we are discussing that they’re going to move the deck how much and the house how much with the elevation, sir?

Mr. Hughes: Sure. 

Mr. Hadid: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: You can hang onto that. They are going to move that deck over here closer to where the row of sliding glass doors are back from this corner of house, somewhere in the vicinity of thirty-six inches.

Mr. Hadid: O.K.

(Audience Member) Twenty-eight.

Mr. Hughes: Twenty-eight? I thought it was a little further than that by eye. 

Mr. Hadid: This is the river.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, your river is down here, the railroad is here.

Mr. Hadid: Right, O.K.

Mr. Hughes: Your steep bank is here.

Mr. Hadid: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: So they are going to move this in twenty-eight inches and that’s going to go out on the same parallel angle that the house is so they are just moving it over to get the alley way open here for the view. 

Mr. Hadid: O.K. O.K. And the elevation comparing to existing elevation would you describe?

Mr. Hughes: Right, the elevation of the deck is going to be the elevation of their first floor.

Mr. Hadid: And the house? The same thing? 

Mr. Maher: The same current deck…the existing deck on the back of the house is basically the same…

Mr. Hughes: Now doesn’t this deck got a lower elevation?

Mr. Foley: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah I don’t think that’s so Michael, I think that the floor over here is higher.

Mr. Maher: Yeah, to this elevation here…

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I think you’ve got three…

Mr. Maher: Three steps difference. 

Mr. Hughes: You’ve got a couple of feet difference there. 

Mr. Hadid:  I just want to…

Mr. Hughes: So that they can come…

Mr. Hadid: …clarify what…

Mr. Hughes: …out on that first floor elevation where those sliding glass doors are. 

Mr. Hadid: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: It looks by eye to me by the photos that your deck is about six foot higher. So you should be looking right over the top of them. 

Mr. Hadid: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. that’s yours.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions or comments from the Board first? 

Mr. Manley: Just one, is there anything in the decision where we would need to restrict the height of the deck so that it doesn’t…there’s no other levels put on the deck or to prevent encroachment of the view shed?

Mr. Donovan: Well two things, our decision says that they only have approval to build what is shown. 

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: But bear in mind that if they’re subject…if they are within the Town Code, they are within the Town Code. 

Mr. Manley: Is there any limitation in the Code for making the deck higher or would there be a restriction?

Mr. Hughes: I believe the intent of the builder is to have it even with the first floor?

Mr. Foley: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: So it will be…

Mr. Donovan: Jerry, I’m not…I’m not aware of anything in the Code but…

Chairperson Cardone: I think what you’re referring to Jim is that perhaps if they enclosed it you’re thinking and then it would become higher but then it wouldn’t be a deck anymore. 

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. McKelvey: They’d have to come back.

Chairperson Cardone: And they’d have to come back.

Mr. McKelvey: They’d have to come back to us. 

Mr. Canfield: Yes, because you would be further increasing the degree of non-conformity.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Canfield: Keep in mind, this is an existing non-conforming lot which can stay as is forever but once they go to enlarge it its going to bring you back to this Board.

Mr. Donovan: I’m sorry; I thought the question is if they built the deck higher.

Mr. Manley: O.K. but if they change the deck in any way…?

Mr. Donovan: Well then it’s increasing the degree of the non-conformity and they need to come back to this Board.

Mr. Manley: It will bring it…it will bring it back here.

Mr. Donovan: Correct.

Mr. Manley: O.K. 

Mr. Hughes: So in order to look into the future and make sure nobody has to end up back in here with a complaint do we condition this that this will be a deck and a deck only and it won’t be enclosed?

Mr. Manley: Well no because if they do anything else they have to come back. 

Mr. Donovan: Understand the decision now…remember we’ve had a few of these come back to us?

Mr. Hughes: Sure.

Mr. Donovan: Say that this is an approval of only what’s proposed, what we call architectural refinements aside, O.K.? But if you’ve got to enclose it and make it a three-season room well that’s materially different than what we approved and they would need to come back here.

Mr. Hughes: Everybody understand?

Mr. Foley: Yes sir. There’s no plans to enclose it. We just want to leave it as a deck with a four-foot railing and that’s it.

Mr. Hughes: And the railing all around is going to be glass? Or just that one side?

Mr. Foley: A…all the way around sir. Now I am I held to that if we decide to change to like a wire of some sort?

Mr. Hughes: What we approve here tonight and what you say you’re going to build…

Mr. Foley: Well is…

Mr. Hughes: …the dimensions.

Mr. Foley: …the approval is what type of railing, does that matter about approval on this?

Mr. Hughes: Counsel?

Mr. Donovan: Well I don’t know what’s on your plans. We approve what’s on your plans so the plans that are submitted are the plans that are going to get approved.

Mr. Foley: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: The location being modified in the course of our discussion tonight.

Mr. Manley: And if its glass, you know, that could effect our decision. If it was going to be solid four-feet that could be, in my opinion, effect the view shed for the neighbors. So having a glass where you can see through it well that’s great now it doesn’t obstruct, in my mind, as much.

Mr. Foley: I agree with you. A…the only a…point we just didn’t get a price on the glass yet. A…but I just want to look on the plans and see what type of railing it called for.

Mr. Canfield: If I may make a suggestion?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Canfield: I have a concern a…in in the past with a resolutions and I think several Board members have already said it a…the applicant is held to building what is submitted.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Canfield: Now what has been submitted tonight through discussion has been altered. My suggestion would be should the Board choose to approve this that it would be somewhat conditioned that the Board or perhaps whoever the Board elects has the opportunity to review this decision on paper to see actual dimensions and to see actual…we had discussed about possibly forty-fiving it…a…we’re now talking about perhaps different railings. It’s been my experience when things are left open ended they may end up not as the Board visualized that it would be. So if perhaps somehow we could have some type of drawing or perhaps a resubmittal to the Board to give you a full opportunity of seeing exactly what your decision was on paper. So both the Board and the Building Department knows what to look for in the field.

Chairperson Cardone: Well we could hold the Public Hearing open until next month and have the new plans, if that’s possible, the new plans to us next month…

Mr. Hughes: Counsel, couldn’t we also condition our…

Chairperson Cardone: …and make our decision or we could even close the Public Hearing and just reserve the decision also. Either way whatever the Board wants to do. 

Mr. Hughes: Grace is there another option here where we could conditionally approve it with the glass and all we’ve discussed in possibilities?

Chairperson Cardone: I agree with Jerry. I think that when we leave things too open it presents problems in the future. You know, then it’s open to interpretation you know, I think that this is…you know, it’s the same thing, it’s just minor, you know and then we expect the people to come back and then they’re not happy. 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Donovan: I would suggest that you either close the Public Hearing and Reserve Decision or keep the Public Hearing open and it’s going to be better for you folks as well too. Because if the situation arises and if we are going to defer to anyone I think we defer to the Building Department for them to make a decision because I think they are better qualified than we are to indicate that it’s a…a substantial or material change.  If that’s the case you’re going to end up with a new hearing, new notices, new hearing and…and you’re going to be in March or April before that happens. So I think its better off if we either close the hearing and put it on next month’s agenda or keep the Hearing open until next month that way you can have new plans submitted, everyone on the Board has an opportunity to review those plans, take a look at them, make sure they are consistent with what we discussed this evening and then you can move forward appropriately. 

Mr. Hughes: So could you reiterate what we’ve agreed on and what we’re looking for tonight? And then we’ll do that or put it up for a vote.

Mr. Foley: May I ask a question before?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. Go ahead and then we have another question.

Mr. Foley: I wanted to know if a…because you’re talking about delaying this a month or two…a…is it possible to start some scope of the work and not do the deck which we’re not planning on doing now? 

Mr. Donovan: I don’t think so, right?

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Mr. Canfield: Well you still have before you the increasing the degree of non-conformity which deals with the a…cantilevering and the bump out in the front. If the Board chooses to act on those requests I would think you can and if you choose at this point to remove the deck portion of the application I would think that the Board can move on that as well.

Chairperson Cardone: And handle that separately.

Mr. Canfield: Yes, correct.

Ms. Drake: Would he have to do new mailings for just the deck as a separate application then?

Mr. Canfield: To be honest with you, I think Dave’s suggestion as far as closing the Hearing and reserving Decision a...

Mr. Hughes: And with the segmentation they can move forward with the front and the removal? And not burn up time or do they have to have a Permit for everything all at once?

Mr. Canfield: No they can do the Permit for the deck separately.

Mr. Manley: Well regardless even if we were to approve everything without putting it in writing just based on what we discussed they still have to get new plans to submit to you anyway, correct?

Mr. Hughes: And for us to review?

Mr. Manley: No, I’m saying if…if we approved everything and did it without getting…

Chairperson Cardone: But we couldn’t…

Mr. Manley: …the plans.

Chairperson Cardone: …because we don’t have the plans because the decision will be based upon the plans that are submitted.

Mr. Manley: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: If those final plans hadn’t been submitted then we can’t have the Decision.

Ms. Drake: If we were to…if we were to make a…a condition that they don’t go any closer than the 10.4-feet with the deck, submit new plans to the Building Department and the deck railings shall be either glass or wire and not wood or solid and then leave it so that the plans are then submitted to the Building Department would that be something that would be acceptable to the Board?

Mr. Donovan: Is that acceptable to the Building…? I don’t know if you’ve looked at the railings. Having built a rear deck and a front porch on my house, I know that’s always an issue with the Building Department. It’s O.K. with glass? I mean, that’s…that’s not an issue? 

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, I have no issue with that at all. But what you’re doing Brenda and its a hundred percent correct but you’re being specific and that’s what the objective here is…is to spell out exactly what we’re agreeing to.

Ms. Drake: Right, we don’t want it to be a solid wall, we don’t, you know, we want it something the view can be seen through. You had mentioned possibly wire and therefore we’re stating that it can’t be a wood railing or a solid wall railing, you know. That way there that allows them a little bit of flexibility to determine which they are going to use and you know the intent that it’s not blocking a view and then…

Mr. Maher: Well as far as…as far as the plans go, you know, and correct me if I’m wrong but just to move it a foot or two to the left, the engineering is complete on the deck so would you actually need a new set of plans submitted based on location or…?

Mr. Canfield: I would like to see a bird’s eye view so you can see a dimension from the top. And another thing…

Ms. Drake:  (Inaudible) …whether it needs to be angled or not. 

Mr. Canfield: Yes, another thing too, we had discussed if you remove the deck portion of this…a…these renovations are extensive to this house.

Mr. Foley: Correct.

Mr. Canfield: So it’s not like you’re going to occupy the house in the next two to three months. There’s a lot of work to be done here.

Mr. Foley: Yes sir.

Mr. Canfield: And a…you know, the deck could be deferred to a later point.

Mr. Foley: Yes sir.

Mr. Canfield: I would think the deck would be one of the latter items to be completed.

Mr. Foley: Correct.

Mr. Canfield: So it’s…

Mr. Foley: We’re just looking to move forward.

Mr. Canfield: (Inaudible) option.

Mr. Foley: …with some progress on the house and the deck is pretty much the last thing to get done anyway…

Mr. Donovan: Well…

Mr. Foley: …so if we could exclude that from the existing plans and a resubmit something with a new deck plan on it that would be…

Mr. Donovan: Just so you understand when you do that, say whatever you do in April, May, June you’re going to need a new application, new fee, new Public Hearing, new notices. 

Mr. Hughes: The mailings and all.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Maher: And understand also that if you’re pouring footings for the front addition you are not pouring footings for the deck at the same time.

Mr. Foley: Correct sir.

Mr. Hughes: If you’re not looking to put this project in fifth gear and you want to go along with the slow move on it then you can segment it. If you’re looking to keep continuity and roll it you’ll do as Counsel suggested and put it up for a vote to close the Hearing and restrain from the Decision until you provide back to us in detail what you are going to use and then we can approve it.

Mr. Foley: Could a…Ms. Drake just explain her point of view again? As far as if we could come to some kind of agreement tonight where we did bring it in and used either a wire or glass railing?

Ms. Drake: O.K. what I’m stating is that the condition of the approval would be such that the house and the deck would be no closer than 10.4-feet from the property line and that the railing and deck, the railing or slots on the deck would either be glass or wire or more specifically not wood so as not to obstruct the view from other residents and that the deck...the plans be shown…submitted to the Building Department showing where the deck would be so that Jerry has his final set of plans and you would then show whether it needs to get angled or not but we would have it clear in the Decision that its no closer than 10.4 and it doesn’t obstruct the view.   

Mr. Foley: If I may look at the plot plan again?

Mr. Hughes: This what you want?

Mr. Donovan: Just to make sure I’m clear are we talking about the railing? Are you talking about what I’ll refer to as the spindles or the top of the railing? Because…what composition is going to be the top of the railing that I put my arm on?

Mr. Foley: The top of the railing is not going to be glass or wire; it would be the area from the railing to the floor of the deck.

Mr. Maher: Right, generally on a glass railing it would be the top and bottom rail is aluminum with aluminum posts and glass panels between generally…

Mr. Donovan: So we’re talking about the panels. The railing proper by definition would be the top of the…the top.

Mr. Maher: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: Not the…Brenda called them the slots; I called them the spindles but that…we’re talking about what’s in between the top and the bottom? 

Mr. Maher: Correct.

Ms. Drake: Oh, O.K. I was thinking the top railing was going to be glass.

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Mr. Maher: No, it’s generally aluminum frame, four inch aluminum posts for the a…structure and then top and bottom are generally aluminum rails, the railing and top and bottom rail. 

Audience Member: So where is the glass?

Mr. Maher: The entire section in the middle is generally is glass or wire.

Ms. Drake: Oh. 

Mr. Maher: It would be a quarter inch wire galvanized or stainless steel wire, different variations.

Mr. Foley: Sir on the plans…I’m sorry I don’t know your name.

Mr. Canfield: Jerry. 

Mr. Foley: Jerry a…on the plans it asks for a three-foot railing is that Code or is four-foot Code? 

Mr. Canfield: I think it needs to be like forty-two actually.

Mr. Hughes: Forty-two is what Code says.

Mr. Canfield: Right.

Mr. Foley: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: So Mr. Canfield are you satisfied with what Brenda has said as far as moving ahead?

Mr. Canfield: Yes. Being (inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: Being very specific.

Mr. Canfield: Yes.

Mr. Maher: If I may add one thing to that? That a surveyor does come out does stake it out and does stretch a line so there are no issues arising after you have done construction. 

Mr. Foley: Are you referring to an as-built after the project or…?

Mr. Donovan: No.

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Ms. Drake: No.

Mr. Maher: In other words the surveyor comes out prior to the construction and that the stakes are placed in a consistent manner that thoroughly depicts the lot line so there are no issues.

Mr. Donovan: And why you’re getting an emphasis on that is we’ve had a number of applications where the surveyor either didn’t stake out or staked out incorrectly, the Building Department issues a Stop Work Order, people come before this Board the project is built in the wrong spot. So…

Mr. Foley: Yes sir.

Mr. Donovan: …we really try to avoid that.

Mr. Hughes: So your property line and your four corners of that deck with a surveyor.

Mr. Foley: Understood.

Mr. Hughes: Then there’s no mistakes, we can’t have an oops here.    

Mr. Foley: Understood.

Mr. Hughes: Now Grace I think Mr. Hadid had something.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, just use the microphone right over there.

Mr. Hadid: Hi, Hadid, just a question for Mr. Hughes. I understand so this is the level where the deck is going to or possible deck is going to be, this is the level? 

Mr. Hughes: Yes, even with the floor on the north end of the house at present.

Mr. Hadid: O.K. Thank you very much. 

Mr. Hughes: So now Counsel is Brenda’s methodology the least path of resistance with out re-mailings and all?   

Mr. Donovan: It’s very clear to me so as long as the Board is satisfied.

Mr. Hughes: I just wanted to sure there is no infringement on the law.

Mr. Donovan: No. 

Mr. Hughes: Not that I would (inaudible) shuffling it a little bit. Jerry you’re cool with everything?

Mr. McKelvey: We want to prevent them from putting a Stop Order in on them.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions or comments?

Mr. Foley: I just a…more in layman’s terms a…could you just clarify where we stand right not? I know there’s a lot of options being…

Mr. Donovan: The Board is considering denying the application entirely.

(Laughter)

Mr. Foley: Thank you, good night.

Chairperson Cardone: Where we’re at right now is that the Building Department wants this Decision to be very, very clear with you know, nothing open to interpretation. And we now have that to the satisfaction of the Building Department. So at this point, if the Board chooses, I think that we are ready to close the Public Hearing. 

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. Is the Board ready to move to the Decision making? 

Mr. Manley: Yes.

Mr. Maher: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: I think we’ve wrung this project out pretty well and it seems as though the neighbors are still smiling.

Ms. Drake: Do you want me to state what the motion is?

Mr. Donovan: Let’s take care of SEQRA first.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. Absolutely we’ll do that first. O.K.
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ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 22, 2011   (Resumption for decision: 8:00 PM) 



FRANK MANISCALCHI


32 SUSAN DRIVE, NBGH







(46-5-20) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for one side yard setback, the combined side yards setbacks and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback to build front and interior alterations and rear bump out addition with a new deck on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the first application Frank Maniscalchi at 32 Susan Drive, seeking area variances for one side yard setback, the combined side yards setbacks and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback to build front and interior alterations and rear bump out addition with a new deck on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: I think we’ve covered every corner of the lot. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Ms. Drake: I make a motion, oh; we don’t need a motion for that right.

Mr. Donovan: We’ll need a motion to approve. I just to make sure we got in the record it was a Type II Action.

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to approve the project with the conditions that the house and the deck do not exceed or no closer to the property line than 10.4-feet, the deck will be moved down to the edge of the sliding glass door as to maintain that 10.4-foot separation distance. The deck will be constructed in such a manner as to not obstruct view either being glass or wire and new plans be submitted to the Building Department showing that the deck location does not exceed the 10.4-feet and that the survey…the corners of the house and the property line are surveyed as to show that the house is no closer than 10.4-feet, the house and the deck. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a second? 

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. O.K. Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: So now do you have a set of plans over here?

Mr. Foley: Yes sir.
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END OF MEETING                                           (Time Noted – 8:03 PM)

Chairperson Cardone: Everyone has the minutes from the last month? Do we have any corrections to the minutes? 

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to approve the minutes?

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we approve the minutes.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor say Aye?

Aye - All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Is there any other business to be brought before the Board tonight?  Do we have a motion to adjourn?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor say Aye?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone:  The motion is carried. The meeting is adjourned.

Mr. Manley: Merry Christmas, Happy New Year.

All – Merry Christmas, Happy New Year.  
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